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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Hotel Charles Gurney stands today on the site of the St. Charles Hotel.
The Tatter building, constructed by J.W.C. Morrison in 1870, was a three story
cottonwood structure, which served as a social gathering place in Yankton. By
1872, three-story wing extensions had been added, expanding the corner-sited
hotel along both Capital and Third Streets.

The present Richardsonian Romanesque hotel was constructed during 1890 and
1891. Designed by St. Paul architect J.H. Coxhead, the three-story design was
executed in red St. Louis pressed brick and ashlar, above a high, “"rusticated"
basement of Sioux Falls granite. The 60' x 80' rectangle was erected on

the corner of Capital and Third streets between the pre-existing brick wings of
the demolished St. Charles Hotel.

Bold, projecting arched portals, which marked the original entrances on both

the east and south facades, support the slight projection of the wall surface

in the upper stories. Corbelled brick "machiolations" Tine the underside

of the cornice and pierced-brick parapet. Colossal voussoirs and paired or
single polished granite columns accent the entries. Oversize stone lintels

top the first-story corner windows, while scaled down versions and matching
stone courses contain the second and third-story openings; stone arch arcading
encloses first-story windows on the north end of the Capitol Street facade.
Grouped singly or in twos and threes, most windows are 2/2 double-hung sash;
because of extensive alteration of the basement and first stories, it is
difficult to specify what may have pre-dated the existing 1940's glass brick

or 1960's casement infills. The north and west facades, normally unseen by

the public, are free of all decorative treatment found on the south and east.
With its original large dining area-ballroom, with sixteen-foot ceiling supported
by Sioux Falls stone pillars, the Hotel Pierce, as named for its original owner,
was one of the most impressive hotels in the area. '

Significant changes in the building's external and internal appearance were
effected during the 1940's by then-owners Charles and Nancy Gurney. The

Third Street entrance was closed off; an additional entrance with metal canopy
was added at the ground level on Capital Street; the west wing on Third street
was rebuilt; a western theme was utilized when the first-floor liquor store and
barber shop were replaced with a coffee shop, dining room, and lounge. Displays
of merchants' wares could still be found in the sample rooms on the first floor
as late as the early 1970's attesting to continued use of the hotel by local
businessmen.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Hotel Charles Gurney began 1ife as the Hotel Pierce in 1891 when, according to a
Tocal newspaper, it was considered the most important improvement to Yankton. The

hotel occupied the site of what was once the St. Charles Hotel built by J.W.C.

Morrison in 1870, a big year for construction in Yankton. The three-story cottonwood
structure was not the city's first hotel, but through the years the structure that

stood on the corner of Third and Capital streets became a landmark. It was a favorite
meeting place for businessmen and politicans and served as a popular location for

social gatherings, a tradition that has continued in the Gurney Hotel to the present day

The hotel played a role in the history of Dakota Territory. The northern annex housed
an United States courtroom on the second floor. The courtroom was the scene of several
colorful events, one being the fatal shooting of McCook, secretary of the Territory,
by Wintermute, a local banker. Probably the most famous incident in the early days
was the trial of Jack McCall, the convicted murderer of "Wild Bi11" Hickok, in the
vicinity of what is now Room 221.

By 1872 two brick annexes were built, one to the north on Capital and one on the

west on Third street. In 1876 the hotel was purchased by Horace Jencks and his son,
Leroy, who operated it for eight years. Morrison purchased the hosteiry in 1884,

and within five years the building was purchased by an hotel company. J.H. Coxhead of
St. Paul, Minnesota, was employed as the architect. The old cottonwood structure was
demolished and the existing structure was begun. Financial problems forced the company
to sell the partially completed building to J.T.M. Pierce in 1890, and it was Pierce
who saw the project through, slightly altering the original plan.

The Hotel Pierce, as it was now called, passed toother owners. Within a few years
Alfred Crebbin purchased the building and it became the Portland Hotel, presumably in
recognition of the Western Portland Cement Company which had flourished for some

twenty years and had given Yankton the nickname of "Cement City." Interior improvements
were made at this time with no exterior changes. As the Hotel Yankton under the owner-
ship of Charles Smith, the building was again remodeled, especially the north annex.
Smith owned and operated the hotel for fifteen years before selling to Charles and
Nancy Gurney in 1944. The Gurneys extensively remodeled and modernized the structure.

The Hotel Charles Gurney was sold to Mr. and Mrs. Elza Anderson in 1962 but the Gurney
name was retained.

The Hotel Chqr]es Gurney is significant both because of its architecture and because
of the role it has played in the social and business Tife of Yankton through. the
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years. The building was one of the most striking Richardsonian Romanesque structures
built in Yankton and the surrounding area at the turn of the century. In spite of
alteration the hotel retains its style and dignity. Socially the hotel is signifi-
cant because in the minds of the citizens of Yankton, and in fact, this landmark
serves as a viable link with the past, extending back to the era when Yankton served
as the capital of the Dakota Territory. The hotel's day-to-day participation in

the business and social life of Yankton over many generations has given it a firm place
in the history of the city. ,
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